'.8‘1'_

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING

of the
l REGIONAL WATER PLANNING GROUP “I”
Wednesday, December 9, 2009 — 10:00 a.m.
Nacogdoches Recreation Center
1112 North Street, Nacogdoches, Texas

1. Call to Order — Chair Kelley Holcomb called the regular meeting to order at 10:15 a.m.

2. Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance — David Alders gave the invocation. Kelley Holcomb
led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum —The roll was called by Lila Fuller and a quorum
was determined as follows:

Voting Members Present (16 of 22)
Kelley Holcomb
David Alders
David Brock
George P. Campbell
Josh David
Chris Davis

Scott Hall
William Heugel

Bill Kimbrough
Duke Lyons

Dale R. Peddy
Hermon Reed
Monty Shank
Darla Smith
Worth Whitehead
J. Leon Young

Voting Members Absent (6)
Jeff Branick
Jerry Clark
Mike Harbordt
Glenda Kindle
Ernest Mosby
John Windham

Proxies:
Scott Hall for Jeff Branick
David Alders for Jerry Clark
l Kelley Holcomb for Mike Harbordt
Monty Shank for Glenda Kindle

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG
December 9, 2009



82

Non-Voting Members Present;:
Terry McFall, USDA NRCS

Governmental Reporting Agencies Present:
Temple McKinnon, Texas Water Development Board

Other Guests Present:

Rex Hunt, Alan Plummer Associates, Project Consultant
Lauren Gonzalez, APAI

Simone Kiel, Freese and Nichols, Inc.
Gary Graham, GE Walker & Assoc.
John Martin, Southeast Texas GCD
Bill Jacobs, Lower Trinity GCD

Greg Morgan, City of Tyler

Bill Tetley, Sierra Club

Bob Bowman, Tx Forest Ind Council
Jim Binns

Keith Wright, City of Lufkin

Brice Clements, City of Nacogdoches

4. Consideration and Approval of the Minutes for the October 14, 2009 meeting. Chair

Kelley Holcomb referenced the minutes in the packet.

George Campbell stated he would clarify the intent of his motion on regarding population

and water demand revisions (Agenda Item No. 13-A) later in the meeting when the
Technical Committee gave its report.

Scott Hall asked for clarification as to why the information provided under the public
comment portion was included in its entirety in the minutes themselves rather than as an

attachment to the minutes. Lila Fuller stated that the information provided under the public

comment section was a summary of the comments actually made by the speaker and they
were included as discussion under that agenda item for clarity rather than attaching at the

end of the minutes. Mr. Hall referenced letters that were handed out under another agenda

item that were not included in their entirety. Ms. Fuller stated that those letters were
provided, but were not submitted under the public comment section, therefore they were
referenced in the minutes and copies of the letters are kept on file as part of the meeting.

David Alders referenced Terry Stelly’s comments under Item No. 8-A and asked that the
last sentence be clarified.

Chris Davis moved to approve the minutes as written. The motion was seconded by Josh
David and unanimously passed.

5. Report from City of Nacogdoches — No report.

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region  ETRWPG
December 9, 2009



6. Reports from adjoining regions activity:

A.

B.

Region C — No report was presented.

Region D - Temple McKinnon reported that Mindy Rabicoff was no longer a member
of Region D, but a replacement had not yet been named. She stated Region D would
meet again January 6.

Region H — David Alders stated Region H met on December 2 in Conroe and reported
that Montgomery County had requested to include two unique reservoir sites and
representatives of the Sierra Club requested to include three unique stream segments. He
stated they also approved Draft Chapters 4, 5 & 7 and would meet again on January 7.

Temple McKinnon added they were considering including as an alternative strategy
transfer of water from Toledo Bend. She stated they would be getting their draft IPP at
their January 6 meeting, and it was not clear whether that would remain in the IPP as an
alternative strategy.

7. Reports from Standing Committees:

A.

B.

Executive Committee — No report.

Finance Committee — Darla Smith reported that 9 counties had paid their allocations
and 11 had not paid for an outstanding balance of approximately $11,500. $38,000 was
reported in the Administrative checking account. Ms. Smith stated the Finance
Committee would call counties that have not paid in January. She clarified that the
outstanding payments were for 2010, with the exception of Angelina County who was
in arrears for 2008, 2009 and 2010,

Bylaws Committee — Met earlier and would have a report later in the agenda.

Technical Committee — Monty Shank reported on behalf of Mike Harbordt who was
not in attendance. He stated they met earlier and the consultants would cover some of
what they discussed in his presentation. He further stated they discussed what George
Campbell referred to earlier in the meeting.

George Campbell spoke and stated that at the last meeting he made a motion with
respect to manufacturing needs and LNV As numbers given to the consultants. In the
minutes the motion stated that he “moved to approve the demand numbers to reflect the
numbers indicated by LNVA for manufacturing demand changes as long as they are
within LNVA’s current water rights permit”, the motion was seconded by Mr. Alders
and unanimously passed. He stated evidently his term “current water rights permit” had
come into question and clarified that to him it was a document, or the instrument, under
which LNVA was currently operating. He stated what it says on that piece of paper as
of the day the motion was made was his intent, and if that piece of paper is modified or
altered or changed in any way, that it would not fall within the perimeters of his
definition of “current water rights permit”. Mr. Campbell stated the planning group

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG

December 9, 2009

83



84

was not a regulatory agency, and could not regulate how LNV A used the water as long
as it was in the confines of their current water rights permit. He further commented that
Scott Hall was in the Technical Committee meeting where this was discussed and he
was in agreement. He offered for Mr. Scott to comment if he wished.

Scott Hall stated that LNV A had an amendment pending before the Commission now,
but that the amendment does not change any of the cornerstones of the water rights. He
further stated the amendment does seek to remove two special conditions from the
water rights, however the volume, rate and place of usage do not change. He stated it
does project to meet the demands for municipal agricultural and industrial uses but is
not proposing any need at this point to develop additional supplies to meet those
projected needs as identified. Mr. Hall stated the permit as it is written today and the
volume that the State has granted LNV A will meet the demands of LNVA.

Nominations Committee — George Campbell stated a nomination had been received
for the Small Business category and he had been contacted by two other entities
indicated they were going to make a nomination as well. He stated they anticipate a
recommendation to be brought forward in January for the board’s consideration.

8. _Reports from other state agencies:
A. Texas Parks & Wildlife Department — No report.

B. Texas Department of Agriculture — No report.

9. Report from Texas Water Development Board Staff — Temple McKinnon with TWDB
stated that as far as the planning process she had nothing new to report, but did want to
make the group aware that there was a Study Commission on Alternative Supplies meeting
for Region C to be held January 14 and that it would be relevant to Region I because
Toledo Bend was being evaluated as an alternative supply. She stated there was a draft
report on the TWDB website, as well as a Socio-economic Analysis surrounding Toledo
Bend and how Toledo Bend would meet those needs. She invited anyone to call her to
discuss.

10. Report from Consultant Team:

A. Discussion on the status of Draft Chapter 9

B. Discussion on Draft Chapter 4 and the preparation of Initially Prepared Plan

Engineering consultants Rex Hunt of Alan Plummer Associates, Inc., and Simone Kiel, of
Freese and Nichols, Inc., presented changes to population and water demands projections,
and discussed updates to Chapters 4, 7, 8, and 9 of the East Texas Regional Water Plan.

Simone Kiel updated the group on the demands based on direction from the October 14
ETRWPG meeting. She indicated there were no new water shortages identified and they
were continuing to coordinate with the wholesale water providers to make sure water
management strategies had been identified and were continuing to update cost estimates

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG
December 9, 2009



85

for the report. She reported they anticipated having this chapter completed by the end of
the year for ETRWPG review.

Ms. Kiel reviewed Chapter 8, which consists of identifying unique stream segments,
unique reservoir sites and legislative recommendations, which the ETRWPG can
communicate to the TWDB and the Legislature of their concerns and desires with regard to
water planning issues. She briefly discussed the legislative recommendations and
reviewed four that were made in the 2006 Water Plan: 1) junior water rights, 2) flexibility
within the regional water plan for alternative water management strategies, 3) continued
funding of the regional water plan, and 4) support of groundwater conservation districts as
the means to manage the State groundwater regions.

Ms. Kiel stated the same legislative recommendations are included in the 2011 plan, with
slight modifications with regard to consistency and flexibility for permitting and planning
within the regional water plan for alternative water management strategies. She stated new
recommendations could be added or expanded upon in this forum should the planning
group choose.

Ms. Kiel presented several possible considerations for new legislative recommendations:
1) consider TWDB flexibility in aggregated water groups such as “County Other”, which
would help to identify smaller entities that might get overlooked in the present
methodology which impacts their ability to seek State funding or develop their project
through the permitting process. 2) recommendation regarding timeline attached to unique
reservoir designation, 3) oppose cancellation of uncommitted water rights, and 4)
flexibility in requirements for state funded projects.

Mr. Hunt reviewed Draft Chapter 9, which was the “Report to Legislature on Water
Infrastructure Funding Recommendations”. He stated this chapter could not be completed
until the survey with TWDB had been completed in March, so the IPP would have a
placeholder for this chapter and would be complete with the exception of Chapter 9.
Temple McKinnon confirmed that was the way it was done by all of the other planning

groups.

Mr. Hunt reviewed the schedule for the draft IPP. He stated it was anticipated that it be
submitted to the planning group approximately two weeks before the next meeting to give
them time to review it before considering its approval at the February meeting. He stated
the IPP must be submitted to the TWDB by March 1 and at that point the public comment
period would begin, with final submission of the 2011 Water Plan to the TWDB in
September for their review and final adoption of the plan in January 2011.

Temple McKinnon stated the analysis of the socio-economic impacts would be compiled
after the IPP is submitted, and if the ETRWPG wanted the TWDB to prepare that analysis
they would, upon official request in writing by the ETRWPG.

Chair Holcomb stated the consulting team would continue to develop legislative
recommendations and if any member of the planning group wanted to submit legislative
recommendations, they should be submitted to him, Rex Hunt or Lila Fuller. He further

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG
December 9, 2009



stated the Executive Committee would review and make recommendations for approval by
the group at the February meeting,

11. Educational Presentation. None.
12. Public Comment (limited to three minutes)

Chairman Holcomb recognized Greg Morgan, Director of Public Works and Utilities for the
City of Tyler who wished to speak.

Mr. Morgan stated the City of Tyler had some concerns with the wording in the Technical
Memorandum dated November 13, 2009. He indicated if the suggested changes, or similar
changes, were not made to the memorandum or in the request to TWDB Tyler would
consider opposing the planning group’s request at the TWDB. Mr. Morgan presented the
following in the form of a letter:

The November 13, 2009 Technical Memorandum from the consultants contains the
following statements:

“The RWPG also retained the proposed Jefferson County manufacturing demand
projects at the October 14, 2009 meeting and no request from the public has been
received to further modify these projects. (Page 2).

[The City of Tyler’s] comments did not request changes to population projections
for the City of Tyler in the 2011 Plan or further changes to manufacturing
demands for Jefferson County. (Page 4).

These statements do not reflect the actual motion made to approve the modified
actions to the Jefferson County manufacturing demand projects nor do they reflect
the substance of Tyler’s comments on the proposed modifications. As stated in
Tyler’s supplemental comments, which were attached to the memorandum, Tyler
understood that the motion to increase manufacturing demand projects in
Jefferson County was conditioned on LNV A not needing new or amended water
rights to meet this “projected” demand, and that depending on how this condition
is incorporated into the request to change demand projects sent to the TWDB and
in the Region I Plan, Tyler may no longer have an objection to the increase.
Because the Technical Memorandum contains no reference to the condition
included in the motion to approve the increase, the statement that Tyler did not
request changes to these projections is not accurate,

The letter provided by Mr. Morgan had suggested changes to the language of the Technical
Memorandum and is on file in the Administrative Offices of the ETRWPG.

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG
December 9, 2009



87

13. Unfinished Business.
' A. Consideration and approval of Population and Water Demand Revisions and
public comments for submittal to the TWDB.

Rex Hunt stated population and water demands projections through 2060 had been
modified since the 2006 Plan for municipal, manufacturing, irrigation, and mining uses.
He stated the planning group must consider final proposed changes to water demands
developed as a result of public comments received during the 14 day comment period
following the October 14 ETRWPG meeting. He commented the November 13,2009
Technical Memorandum contained in the agenda packet included changes made and
comments received during the comment period. '

Mr. Hunt reviewed the process for approval of the Population and Water Demand
Revisions and final submission for requested changes by the end of the year. reviewed
the population and water demand revisions that were approved by the ETRWPG in
October.

Mr. Hunt reviewed public comments received from the City of Lufkin, LNVA, ANRA
and the City of Tyler, all of which were included in the November 13, 2009 Technical
Memorandum.

Mr. Hunt stated Lufkin Deputy City Manager Keith Wright had requested Angelina
County Manufacturing demands be increased to account for new industrial projects
slated for the city.

The Lower Neches Valley Authority General Manager Scott Hall requested a decrease
in Irrigation demands in Jefferson County to 140,000 acre-feet per year through 2060.

Angelina & Neches River Authority General Manager Kelley Holcomb requested a
change to Mining demands for Angelina, Cherokee, Nacogdoches, Shelby and San
Augustine Counties, reflecting a need for water to support increased gas production in
these counties.

Mr. Hunt stated an additional change had been identified with regard to the Irrigation
Demands in Orange County. He stated when they began to research where the demand
figures were coming from, they determined the demand really was not there. In
checking with TWDB staff, they would not support the request voted on in October for
6,250 acre-feet per year. He explained the planning group could keep the 6,250 acre-
feet per year figure in the plan knowing TWDB may or may not approve it, or go back
to the 2006 numbers of 2,509 acre feet per year which TWDB staff will support.

Darla Smith asked where the 2006 numbers came from for Irrigation Demands and if
TWDB supports that number. Temple McKinnon stated TWDB staff does support the
l 2006 demand, but could not verify the demand proposed in the 2011 Plan.

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG
December 9, 2009



88

There was discussion regarding the source for the 6,250-acre feet per year figure
reported for Orange County for Irrigation Demands. Gary Graham, consultant with
G.E. Walker and Associates stated the figures were misreported in the database and he
agreed they should be removed. Irrigation in Orange County was briefly discussed with
regard to sources of water and how it was reported.

Temple McKinnon stated TWDB would more than likely be studying irrigation
demands in the future in preparation for use in the 2016 Water Plan.

Scott Hall moved to use the 2006 number of 2,509 acre-feet per year for Irrigation
Water Demand Projections in Orange County. The motion was seconded by Monty
Shank and unanimously passed.

Chairman Holcomb opened the floor for discussion regarding the request of the City of
Lufkin for Manufacturing Demand revisions for Angelina County. Darla Smith asked if
any data supporting this request had been provided. It was stated that information was
provided in the Technical Memorandum to support the request.

Scott Hall stated it was his understanding that the City of Lufkin purchased the Abitibi
water rights and it seemed reasonable to keep some demands in line with the water
rights and future use by the city.

Chris Davis moved to approve the request of the City of Lufkin to increase
Manufacturing Demands for Angelina County from 8,000 acre-feet per year to 14,750
acre-feet per year. The motion was seconded by Monty Shank and unanimously passed.

Chairman Holcomb open the floor for discussion on the request of LNVA that Jefferson
County Irrigation demands is reduced.

David Alders asked for clarification regarding the 60,000 acre-feet per year that Scott
Hall stated was coming out of Region I, but used in Region H.

Scott Hall explained that it was a demand coming out of Region I that ends up servicing
Region H. He stated it showed up in the Wholesale Water Provider Table, so in
LNVAs projections it shows as a supply in Chambers and Hardin County service areas.
Simone Kiel stated that in the 2006 Plan, it was shown that LNVA provided water from
Sam Rayburn to irrigation in Region H and some of the demand is met in LNVA.

Scott Hall moved to approve the request of LNVA to reduce the Irrigation demand for
Jefferson County from 200,000 acre-feet per year to 140,000 acre-feet per year. The
motion was seconded by Monty Shank and unanimously passed.

Chairman Holcomb opened the floor for discussion regarding the request of ANRA for
Mining demands to be added for Angelina, Cherokee, Nacogdoches, Shelby and San
Augustine Counties.

Minutes approved 2/17/2010 Region I ETRWPG

December 9, 2009



